Public Safety #01
October 4, 2021
1of5
MINUTES
CITY OF IQALUIT
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE #01
OCTOBER 4, 2021 at 3:00 p.m.
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

PRESENT

Mayor Kenny Bell, Chair

Deputy Mayor Solomon Awa, Vice Chair

Mads Sandbakken, Family Services — Member at Large

Jessica Young, Government of Nunavut — Member at Large

Joel Fortier, Qikiqtani Inuit Association (QIA) — Member at Large
Sherri Robertson, YWCA — Member at Large

Murielle Jassinthe, Nunavut Black Society — Member at Large
Jennifer Riles, Public Safety and Crime Prevention, Department of Justice, Government
of Nunavut — Member at Large

Constable Corey Joudry, RCMP — Member at Large

ABSENT

Nancy Tagalik, Family Services — Member at Large

Corporal Paul Rogers, RCMP — Member at Large

Dave Wilman, Tukisigiarvik — Member at Large

Laurel McCorriston, Uquutaq Society — Member at Large

Bryan Cassels, Uquutaq Society — Member at Large

Landis Carmichael, Acting Director of Emergency Services/Fire Chief

PRESENT FROM ADMINISTRATION

Amy Elgersma, Chief Administrative Officer

Tammy Emst-Doiron, City Clerk

Jeanie Eeseemailee, Senior Interpreter/Translator

Rod Mugford, Municipal Enforcement Chief — Support Staff of Committee

ADOPTION OF AGENDA
Motion #PSC21-01

Moved by: Joel Fortier
Seconded by: Jessica Young

Adoption of agenda as presented.
Unanimously Carried

1. MINUTES

None




Public Safety #01
October 4, 2021
20f5

2. DELEGATIONS
a) Beach Area Resident

Jennifer Lindell expressed her concern regarding safety issues and violence in the beach
area. She indicated that it occurs throughout the day at various times and is worse during
the summer months from May to October. She noted that during the summer, QIA
conducted a pilot project by providing security during the night to help keep the beach
safe, however, the results are not yet known.

Ms. Lindell commented that more security and lighting would help in the short-term, but
long-term solutions are needed.

Joel Fortier explained that a two-month pilot project provided security during the
weekend nights to determine if it would curtail any of the behaviour. He explained that
security did not have much of an impact in curtailing drinking, as people knew the limits
of the security guards.

Mayor Bell noted that the RCMP conducted foot patrols on the beach and are working
with mental health professionals to avoid marginalizing people who are having a
problem, to ensure that they are treated with respect, and hopefully will get the help that
they need.

Deputy Mayor Awa commented that people have mental health problems. He expressed
the importance that solutions are needed to provide help with all addictions.

Mads Sandbakken noted that the problem is not limited to the beach area, as
homelessness is increasing, shelters are always to capacity, and individuals are turned
away on a daily basis.

3. DECLARATION OF INTEREST

None

4. DEFERRED BUSINESS AND TABLED ITEMS

None
5. NEW BUSINESS
a) Terms of Reference — Public Safety Committee
Committee members were asked for their comments regarding the Terms of Reference.

It was suggested that the Committee Purpose should include public drunkenness.



Public Safety #01
October 4, 2021
30of5

Mayor Bell asked Committee members to review the Terms of Reference and any
changes could be discussed at the next meeting, at which time, the amended Terms of
Reference could be recommended to Council for approval.

b) Ideas on How to Move Forward on Vandalism and Racism

Mayor Bell pointed out that taxi drivers are experiencing racism, and vandalism to their
cars. Mayor Bell advised that he accompanied Inspector Denis Lamb and visited six
houses in various locations to meet with parents where children were suspected of rock
throwing. They stressed the importance of not throwing rocks, which was positively
received by the parents. Mayor Bell noted that rock throwing had stopped until this past
weekend.

Mayor Bell asked for suggestions on dealing with racism and continued efforts to curb
rock throwing.

The following comments/suggestions were made:
Make people aware that racism is not acceptable
Educate people on phrases and words that are being used which are racist
In other cities, there are cameras that monitor activity.
Taxi companies have public relation issues that need to be dealt with
o Expressed concern that taxis are used for bootlegging and drug dealing,
and vehicles are old
o Mayor Bell explained that there are cameras in taxis to deter illegal
activity.
e Racism occurs for all frontline workers and it is important to change their
profile/image through messaging and communication
e Taxi drivers should be seen as a community helper
¢ Suggested no front seat passengers and install plexiglass behind front seat
o Mayor Bell explained that the Taxi By-law could be reviewed and
recommendations forwarded to the Taxi Review Committee.
e Schools should educate students on various ethnic backgrounds
e Have places for youth to gather and provide programs, which will give them
something positive to do and help deter mischief activities and at the same time,
educate them on acceptable and non-acceptable activities
o Mayor Bell asked that additional information on this be presented to the
next meeting for discussion and possible recommendation.
e How will these suggestions come to fruition?
o Mayor Bell explained that the Committee can make a recommendation to
Council to implement or Council will lobby the government for funding.
e Jessica Young committed to working with Public Safety to have a facilitator to
work with this committee and the community to develop a Public Safety Plan for
the city.
o Amy Elgersma noted that the matter will be placed on the next agenda for
discussion and recommendation to Council.



Public Safety #01
October 4, 2021
4 0f 5

¢) Public Drunkenness — Beach Area (Ideas)

Mayor Bell noted that the presentation earlier suggested on-site security, garbage bins
and lighting. Mayor Bell explained that a meeting was previously scheduled to meet with
representatives from Qulliq Energy Corporation (QEC) regarding low lighting in the city.
He advised that he would discuss the installation of lights in the beach area.

The following comments/suggestions were made:

e Signage or awareness campaign regarding public drinking
Enforcement patrols on the beach
QIA distributed a survey asking people what they wanted to see on the beach

o A Land Use Plan is currently being designed for the beach and once
completed, a funding application will be submitted.

e RCMP carried out foot and ATV patrols two to three days a week for six weeks
on the beach and throughout the city and received positive proactive results.

e No Public Drinking Signs will be installed in various locations throughout the city
in designated problem areas
Responsible use signs in the Iqaluit Beer and Wine Store

e Mental Health Director has accompanied RCMP on ride-alongs to observe social-
economic issues .
Educate young adults on a safe drinking culture
There are individuals who are self-medicating and homeless individuals who
drink in public places, as there is nowhere for them to go.

e A safe consumption place is needed
The underlying problem is lack of housing, which continues to be the same
problem. People are being displaced from one area to another.

¢ Interaction with people will go a long way because it will show that someone
cares

e Community Safety Officer’s Program which is seen as helping hands and not
enforcement officers, which could be part of the Public Safety Plan. Funding
could be available for such a program.

e Teamwork by all agencies will go a long way

Mayor Bell noted that Council wants to see progress and positive changes for the
community.

d) Draft By-law - Domesticated Animal Control By-law

Rod Mugford, Municipal Enforcement Chief, explained that various by-laws will be
reviewed by the Committee, seeking input as it relates to public safety.

Mr. Mugford asked for feedback in relation to the draft Domesticated Animal Control
By-law. The following comments/suggestions were made:
o There is no reference to a dog team
o Mr. Mugford advised that there is a separate by-law relating to dog teams



Public Safety #01
October 4, 2021
Sof$5
e The City has changed their by-law so that dogs are now registered free of charge.
This is to encourage residents to register their dogs so that in the event they
become loose, they can be returned to their owners.
o Loose dogs will be held for seven days. If they are not claimed and are
deemed adoptable, they will be shipped to the Ottawa Humane Society.
o Considering the possibility of constructing a facility, pending funding.
e Awareness campaign to register dogs free of charge, as there are many dogs
running at large in Apex
o Public Service Announcements are being made
o Municipal Enforcement patrols Apex twice a week
e Destruction — should be changed to a more appropriate word

6. ADJOURNMENT

Motion #PSC21-02

Moved by: Jessica Young
Seconded by: Mads Sandbakken

Committee adjourns at 4:56 p.m. e
Unanimously Carried

Kenny Bell
Mayor

A

Rod Mugford AR
Municipal Enforcement Chief

Approved by the Public Safety Committee on the 1% day of February 2022.







